
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
December 3, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Gaylord Schaap at 6:33 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.)  
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.) 
 
Director Schaap reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar as submitted. Director Holmer seconded.  Discussion ensued.  
Comment were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director 
Marquez de la Plata abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes) because he was not yet seated at the 
November 5 and November 23 Board Meetings.  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 5, 2015 Regular Board Meeting and 
the November 23, 2015 Special Board Meeting. 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 1







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:38 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:38 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:38 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by 
Robin Donoghue.  Further discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to pursue the 
possibility of a sale to a neighbor and putting our own conservation easement on the 
property.   


 
V-B. (7:09 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY Review of the Capital Improvement Program.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-C.  (7:43 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Election of Officers.  The GM provided an overview 


of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.   
 


 Director Robb-Wilder nominated Director Lipinski for President. 
 Director Holmer nominated Director Robb-Wilder for Vice President.  Board 


Discussion ensued. 
 Director Holmer nominated Director Marquez de la Plata for Financial 


Coordinator.   
 
 Director Robb Wilder moved to approve the nominations.  Director Lipinski seconded.  


Motion carried 5-0.  
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. 2016/2017 CIP 
5. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Gantt Chart 
 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:03 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder spoke regarding adding emails to the District roster. 
 
Director Lipinski announced that the Guernewood Resort had been sold to a family. 
 
Director Lipinski announced that new management of the Rio Theatre had been involved with the 
formation of the Sweetwater Springs Water District. 
 
 


 2







 3


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:12 p.m.) 
 
1. CIP 2016 Completion 
2. Riverlane property 
3. Budget Committee 
4. FY 2014-15 Audit 
5. Loans/Grants for CIP 2017 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:13 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:38 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:38 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:03 p.m.)



		VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:12 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
January 7, 2016, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 3, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 
A. Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane (Est. time 15 min.)  
 
B. Discussion/Action re Possible USDA Loans and/or Grants for CIP 2017 (Est. 


time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Introduction to FY 2015-16 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget Process (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D.   Discussion/Action re 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (Est. time 15 min.)  
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		VIII.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : January 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 17448 
RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
recent issues at the District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville and provide 
direction to staff.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
17448 River Lane, Guerneville, is a property of approximately one acre in Vacation 
Beach, Guerneville.  It was formerly the site of a District well which has been long 
abandoned.  The Board discussed issues regarding this property at the September 
meeting, heard from a neighboring property's owners, Mr.  and Mrs. O'Flynn, and a 
subcommittee comprising Rich Holmer and Sukey Robb-Wilder was appointed to assist 
the General Manager to investigate this item more fully.   
 
Progress: 
 
Again, not much has happened in the past month.  I have made  two calls to the 
Agriculture and Open Space Commission this month regarding a conservation easement 
but have not received a call back, maybe it will happen the week of January 4 as my 
second call was during the week of December 28 and many of the staff were on 
vacation. 
 
I have again communicated with Mr. James Vincent who reaffirmed his interest in the 
property; I sent him an appraisal of the property and we agreed to talk after the New 
Year.     
 
 





		Meeting Date : January 7, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : January 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING POSSIBLE LOAN/BOND WITH USDA 
FOR 2017 CIP  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
the possibility of a bond/grant from USDA for the 2017 CIP and provide direction to 
staff.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As we discussed at the December 3 Board meeting item on the District Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP), the District does not have sufficient funds to construct the 
2017 CIP if the cost of this project exceeds the original contract cost estimate by the 
amount we suspect it will.  We will have this cost estimate when the preliminary design 
is done in mid January.  I am looking for alternative sources of funding - preferably 
grants, but also loans.   
 
On December 15, I talked with Quinn Donovan of the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Office in Santa Rosa at our office.  USDA would 
be interested in loaning us funds for the 2017 CIP.  As stated by Mr. Donovan, the 
terms would be 2.5% interest with 25% loan forgiveness (he believes we qualify as a 
disadvantaged community).  So, if the project cost $2 million, the District would get a 
loan for $1.5 million and a $500,000 grant.  The loan would be in the form of a bond 
(we would need bond counsel for an unknown cost) for 40 years.  The annual payment 
would be approximately $60,000.   
 
The timing for getting this bond done is such that the funds likely would not be available 
until the summer some time - July or August, if we started at the beginning of 
February.   
 
I have been looking for other grant funding but so far unsuccessfully.   
 





		Meeting Date : January 7, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2016-2017 BUDGET PROCESS 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2016-2017 
Budget process and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board typically approves its annual budget at the May meeting and we 
intend to follow this practice this year.  Table 1 below identifies a calendar for 
the budget approval process.  Milestones include the Proposition 218 process 
which has a 45-day notice and a public hearing for increases in rates and 
fees, if necessary, and a public hearing on the Budget itself.  A Proposition 
218 Notice will be necessary for any rate increase for Fiscal Year 2016-17 or 
beyond.     
 
In past years the Board President has appointed two Board Members to the 
ad hoc Budget Committee to assist the General Manager in the development 
of the budget.  Those appointments have occurred either at the December or 
January meetings.   
 
The District’s financial planning has assumed annual 3% increases to the 
base, water usage rates and the Capital Debt Reduction Charge.  Over the 
last 12 months (October 2015 Index), the Consumer Price Index for all Urban 
Consumers, San Francisco area (CPI-U) advanced  2.6 percent..  Energy 
prices declined 12.9percent, largely the result of a decrease in the price of 
gasoline. The index for all items less food and energy advanced 3.4 percent 
since October 2014.   These increases are similar to a year ago.  A 1% 
increase in water rates returns annual revenue of approximately $22,000.   
 
If the District decides to increase water rates, staff also wishes to review fees 
and charges so that these can be adjusted at the same time (and noticed in 
the same Prop 218 notice).   
 







FY 2016-2017 BUDGET PROCESS   2 
January 7, 2016 
 


 


 
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2016-2017 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 3, 2015 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2016 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 3, 2016 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 21, 2016 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 7, 2016 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary


May 5, 2016 


 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: January 7, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP) and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The State Department of Water Resources (DWR) requires a periodic water 
plan for all water agencies supplying over 3,000 acre feet of water annually 
or having over 3,000 customers.  Sweetwater Springs Water District falls into 
the latter category and has produced its UWMP every five years since at least 
2000.  The 2015 update of the UWMP is due July 1, 2016.   A water plan is an 
essential item for all water agencies - it incorporates background information 
with operational information, historical information and future projections.  It 
lets one know where the agency has been, is now, and where it's going.   
 
This will be my second UWMP for the District and I plan to do it again in-
house (not hire a consultant).  The update should be straightforward - there 
have been no real changes since 2010 and there's no new census or other 
data to give us any real new perspective on our customer base. 
 
This is a big deal for the DWR staff who oversee this and they have a new 
(still draft) handbook to provide guidance (read required elements).  I have 
quickly gone through the draft and I believe I saw some new tables but I 
didn't see anything that raised alarms for me.   
 
To review our 2010 UWMP process, we submitted the UWMP in October 2011, 
the initial review came back one and one half years later in 2013 with 
corrections needed for approval, I talked with DWR staff and we agreed that 
Sweetwater Springs would make those corrections in the 2015 update (the 
report we are discussing now) and in the summer of 2014 we received a 
letter stating that our 2010 submittal was approved.   The principal 
advantage of having an approved UWMP is that the agency is eligible for 
State loans and grants.   
 
My plan for the 2015 UWMP Update is to: 
 







2015 Urban Water Management Plan Update 2 
January 7, 2016 
 


 


 Check in with Sonoma County Water Agency staff for their guidance 
and suggestions. 


 Get up to date with the California Urban Water Conservation Coalition 
submittals (this satisfies the water conservation element of the UWMP). 


 Use the County nonurbanized area population growth rate estimate to 
update our population estimate. 


 Update the 2010 UWMP with current data and information. 
 Use the DWR guidelines and checklist to make certain I have the tables 


done correctly and completely. 
 Use our experience from the current drought response to update and 


fill in the required water shortage contingency plan.   
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: January 7, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 7, 2016  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in November were 20,873 units (47.9 AF, 
Guerneville cycle) and production was 47.8 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were lower (48.8 AF and 49.1 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
stayed the same (22.1), and the same as last year in November.   The reduction from 
November 2013, the State Board standard, was 19.1%, better than the State mandate of 
16%., and we are still averaging approximately 25% for the summer/fall (May-November).  
GPCD for November was 55.5.  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference since 
2008.   


 
2. Leaks:  In November we had 9 total leaks and spent 82.5 man-hours on them.   Those are 


the more leaks and more man-hours compared to the prior month and compared to 
November one year ago (7 leaks, 34 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total breaks line as well.       


   
3.  Guerneville Rainfall:  We are in the third month of an El Nino rain year and rainfall 


amounts have started to pick up.  Figure 3 shows historical rainfall compared to this year's 
rain.  It's looking better - ahead of 2009 now and it's still early - El Nino-related rains 
typically don't happen until after the New Year.   One year ago we had near flooding on 
December 12 and then it mostly stopped raining.                  


 
4. 2016/2017 CIP:   Piazza Construction is nearly done with the 2016 CIP on Canyon 1 Road 


in Rio Nido.  There is one cleanup item and then the Notice of Completion can be approved - 
the holiday interfered with this.          


   
5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates reported for December. 
 
6. In-House Construction Projects: In December five in-house construction projects were 


reported: replacement of a six inch valve at the Monte Rosa tank (101 man-hours), 
replacement of an eight inch dresser coupling at the Monte Rio Well #4 (10 man-hours), 
installation of two inch gate valve at the base of Solar Ridge Rd (3.75 man-hours), 
replacement of service line on Hwy 116 (49 man-hours) and replacement of service line and 
box on Crescent Dr. (10.5 man-hours).  


 
7. Monte Rio Bridge:  On December 16 I attended a public meeting on the Monte Rio Bridge 


Replacement Project.  The bridge needs to be replaced - seismic and flood safety are the 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
January 7, 2016 
 


main issues.  It's very early in the replacement process, many public meetings to come.  The 
earliest anticipated start of construction is 2022.  This is important to the District because 
the only water main serving the east bank of Monte Rio goes across the current bridge.   


 
8. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for January has the 2016-17 Budget preparation beginning  


and it's on the agenda.          
 
 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
January 7, 2016 
 


 Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


Sep-
14


Jan-
15


May-
15


Sep-
15


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2015


2016


07-15 Avg


-







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: January 7, 2016 



